
 

Town of Green Mountain Falls 

10615 Green Mountain Falls Road 

Planning Commission Meeting Agenda 
Tuesday March 12th 2024 at 6:30 pm 

In Person and on Zoom 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89965195074?pwd=Uy9sNlJhS3c2R2VsN01Ka3JKdzU3QT09 
Meeting ID: 899 6519 5074                                                                               Passcode: 440840 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL / TECH CHECK 
 
2. ADDITIONS, DELETIONS, OR CORRECTIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
3. CONSENT AGENDA 
Approval of Meeting Minutes from last meeting on 12-19-2023 
 
4. PUBLIC INPUT: 3 Minutes per speaker 
 
5. REPORTS 
 
6. Public Hearing-Major Site Plan 10325 W. Highway 24 
 
7. BUSINESS 
    a) Major Site Plan Application-10325 W. Highway 24 
    b) Agenda Process 
         1. Old Business Items 
    
8. CORRESPONDENCE 
 
9. DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
10. ADJOURNMENT 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89965195074?pwd=Uy9sNlJhS3c2R2VsN01Ka3JKdzU3QT09


 

 

TOWN OF GREEN MOUNTAIN FALLS 

Planning Commission Meeting 

2023-12-19 at 6:30 P.M. 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

 

Commission Members Present                                      
Lamar Mathews, Chair 
Ann Esch 
Rocco Blasi 
Mike Frey 
Lisa Bonwell 

Commission Members Not Present 

Town Clerk 
Bo Ayad 

Town Manager 

Becky Frank 

 

 

1. Call to Order & Roll Call 

Chair Lamar Mathews called the meeting to order at 6:31 p.m.  Roll was taken and 
all commissioners were present either in person or on Zoom. Mayor Dixon was 
present on Zoom. 

2. Additions, Deletions, or Corrections to the Agenda 

Commissioner Blasi made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Frey, to accept 
the agenda as amended. Motion passed unanimously. The amendment was to 
remove Item 9B- budget recommendations and Item 9A- Guard Rail. 
Commissioner Blasi added Item 9B which was a prepared statement.  

3. Consent Agenda 

A motion to approve PC Meeting Minutes as amended from 11-13-2023 was 

made by Commissioner Frey and seconded by Commissioner Esch. Motion passed 

unanimously.  The amendment is that Commissioner Bonwell and Commissioner 

Esch were present at Town Hall and all other Commissioners were present on 

Zoom. 

4. Public Input 3 Minutes Per Speaker 



 

  

 

 

None 

5. Staff Report  

The Town Planner gave an update on the Zoning Map and a timeline of Q1 on 
completion. Application Docs have been recreated with additional instruction 
and graphics as well as a checklist. The Town Planner shared a screen showing 
engineering processes.  A discussion took place on the previously presented 
idea of somehow displaying permits publicly. Char Mathews asked for 
additional clarity on whether the PC may have the addresses of properties that 
are under application. There is a 01/30/2024 All Boards Training where new 
policies will be rolled out.   

6. Business 

6a) Zoning Map  
Update The Town Planner gave an update on the Zoning Map with a projected 
completion date in the First Quarter of next year.  
 
6b) Staging Policy Update 
The Town Clerk gave an update on the Draft Staging Policy. Staff is currently 
working with Legal to see if this can simply be a temporary use permit with 
guidelines on how Staff issues the permit.  
 
6c) Guard Rail Options 
Tabled for time being. 
 
6d) Stilling Basin Maintenance 
The TM gave an update saying that routine maintenance will be part of the Public 
Works regular duties. Jesse Stroope said that there is a Community Forum 
scheduled for 01/31/24.   
 
6e) Fee Schedule Update 
The Town Clerk projected the completed Fee Schedule & thanked all parties for 
their contributions.  
 
 

  



 

  

 

 

7. Discussion Items 

 7a) REMOVED 

 7b) Commissioner Blasi Shared comments on leadership and thanks for 
outgoing Chair Mathews and her work for the Town while serving on the Planning 
Commission. Commissioner Blasi voiced disappointment that the BoT voted on 
Commission Appointments without giving explanation for those votes.  

 7c) Chair Mathews A projection of GMF Municipal Code Article X- Planning 
Commission was displayed and a discussion took place on the role of the Planning 
Commission. Chair Mathews asked for 2-163 B to remain on Old Business in 
future PC Agendas. The legal team did suggest in the previous meeting that a 
change in the Land Use Code could make the PC more active. PC will take a lead 
role in Updating the Comprehensive Plan in 2024. The current Plan was signed in 
2019 and is good for ten years, but a midway review is best practice. Chair 
Mathews also revisited the topic of a Town Wide Survey and the benefits of 
having that work done.  

Chair Mathews gave closing remarks on 2023 and her time in general on the PC. 
She highlighted the many accomplishments of the PC as well as some of the 
hardships they face as Commissioners. She thanked the commissioners for their 
dedication and volunteerism.  

8.Correspondence  

None.  

9. Adjournment Meeting adjourned at 8:04 p.m. By Chair Mathews. 



Town of Green Mountain Falls 
PO Box 524, Green Mountain Falls, CO  80819    719‐684‐9414 
greenmountainfalls.colorado.gov 

 

GMF‐24‐01 10325 W. Highway 24 Major Site Plan    Page 1 of 5
   

 
PLANNING COMMISSION  Date Prepared: March 8, 2024 

STAFF REPORT  Meeting Date:  March 12, 2024 

 

RE:  Green Mountain Falls Horse Wellness Meadow ‐ Major Site Plan 

To:  Town of Green Mountain Falls Planning Commission 

From:  Julie Esterl, Baseline Corporation 

Project Number:  GMF‐24‐01 

Project Address:  10325 W. Highway 24 

Applicant:  Jesse Stroope 

Property Owner:  Historic Green Mountain Falls Foundation LLC 

Zoning:  O – Open Space 

CC: Becky Frank, Town Manager 

Ben Thurston, AICP, Baseline 

   

 

MATTER BEFORE THE PLANNING COMMISSION 

Major Site Plan to develop a horse wellness facility at 10325 West Highway 24.  Section 12‐51 of the 

Green Mountain Falls Land Use Code (LUC) establishes the Planning Commission as the decision‐making 

body for a Major Site Plan. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission APPROVE WITH CONDITIONS a Major Site Plan for the 
development of a horse wellness facility at 10325 West Highway 24. 
 
APPLICATION 

On January 30, 2024, Jesse Stroope, 

representing the property owner Historic 

Green Mountain Falls Foundation LLC, 

submitted an application for a Major Site Plan 

for the property at 10325 W. Highway 24. 

 

ANNEXATION & ZONING 

The property was annexed to the Town in 

2021 and initially zoned PL – Public Lands.  An 

annexation agreement was prepared in 

conjunction with the annexation plat, which 

requires that the development of the property 

be in compliance with the annexation 

agreement. 

 

In 2022, the Land Use Code (LUC) was amended, and the property was rezoned from PL – Public Land to 

O ‐ Open Space. 



Town of Green Mountain Falls 
PO Box 524, Green Mountain Falls, CO  80819    719‐684‐9414 
greenmountainfalls.colorado.gov 

 

GMF‐24‐01 10325 W. Highway 24 Major Site Plan    Page 2 of 5
   

EXISTING CONDITIONS 

The property is unplatted and is 30.7 acres in size.  The property has a mounatianous terrain ranging 

from 7,800 feet to over 8,000 feet at the top of Red Devil Mountain.  Five structures currently exist on 

the site including two (2) cattle sheds and three (3) farm utility buidings.  These structures are located in 

the proposed parking area of the future development, and are planned for demolition.  In addition, the 

property contains the James Turell Skyspace art installation which will remain on the site. 

 

PROPOSAL 

The proposed development plan includes a horse barn (including atrium and restrooms), corrals, two 

dry lots for horse feeding, a round pen for horse training, and a hay barn – along with associated 

driveways and parking.  Per Section 12‐53 of the Land Use Code (LUC), development review is required 

prior to the issuance of a building permit and construction of physical improvements.  Based on the 

scope of the proposal, approval of a Major Site Plan is required in order to develop the proposed horse 

wellness facility.  

 

LAND USE REVIEW 

Staff has determined the proposed use to be defined as an animal shelter.  Currently, an animal shelter 

is not a permitted or conditional use within the Open Space zone district.  Staff has prepared a draft 

ordinance that would add Animal Shelter as a conditional use within the Open Space district.  That 

ordinance will be reviewed by the Board of Trustees at a future meeting. 

 

Based on the proposed ordinance, the Planning Commission and Board of Trustees will need to review a 

Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for the proposed horse wellness facility development.  The review of the 

CUP by the Planning Commission and the Board of Trustees has been scheduled for March 19, 2024.  

Staff is recommending a condition of approval for both the Major Site Plan and Conditional Use Permit 

to address the timing of those requests prior to the adoption of the ordinance. 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN REVIEW 

Staff finds that the proposal is in conformance with the Green Mountain Falls Comprehensive Plan.  

According to the plan’s Future Land Use Map, the northern third of the property is designated as 

Business use and the southern two‐thirds is designated as Open Space.  Regarding development goals, 

staff finds that the proposal is consistent with Goal 3.4.1 through Policy A: Support development that 

enhances a sense of community and is compatible with surrounding land uses, the natural environment, 

and the community’s expectations, and Policy C: Encourage development along Highway 24 that is 

appropriately scaled and is in keeping with the uses desired by Green Mountain Falls’ residents. 

 

MAJOR SITE PLAN REVIEW 

Section 12‐41 of the LUC establishes dimensional standards for each zoning district.  For the Open Space 

district, there is no minimum lot area, lot width, or setbacks – and there is no maximum density.  The 

maximum building height for both primary and accessory structures is 25 feet.  The proposed main barn 

is 20’‐10.5” in height, and the proposed hay barn is 22’‐6” in height.  Both proposed buildings are in 

compliance with the height regulations of the Open Space district. 



Town of Green Mountain Falls 
PO Box 524, Green Mountain Falls, CO  80819    719‐684‐9414 
greenmountainfalls.colorado.gov 

 

GMF‐24‐01 10325 W. Highway 24 Major Site Plan    Page 3 of 5
   

Water and Sewer Service:  Water will be 

provided by a private well.  Sanitary 

sewer will be provided by a private septic 

system.  These proposed utilities are in 

conformance with the annexation 

agreement. 

 

Dry Utilities:  The development plan 

should be referred to the utility 

companies serving the property.  Because 

the property has not been previously 

subdivided, there do not appear to be 

any utility easements established for gas, 

electric, cable, etc.  Any necessary 

easements will need to be provided by 

the applicant. 

 

Drainage:  The grading and erosion 

control plan provided by the applicant 

has been reviewed by Kiowa Engineering.  

Comments were received on March 5, 

2024.  These comments must be 

addressed and will be a condition of site 

plan approval. 

 

Parking:  The development plan includes 

twelve (12) standard parking spaces and 

seven (7) trailer parking spaces.   This 

appears to be adequate parking for the 

proposed use, however, at least one of 

the standard spaces needs to be 

converted to an ADA accessible space. 

 

Traffic:  Per the annexation agreement, a 

traffic study is required. 

 

Access:  The development plan indicates access to the property will be from an existing 24‐foot‐wide 

gravel driveway with access directly from West US Highway 24.  The application must be submitted to 

the Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT) for review and comment.  Staff expects a CDOT 

access permit to be required, and that permit may require additional access improvements. 

   



Town of Green Mountain Falls 
PO Box 524, Green Mountain Falls, CO  80819    719‐684‐9414 
greenmountainfalls.colorado.gov 

 

GMF‐24‐01 10325 W. Highway 24 Major Site Plan    Page 4 of 5
   

PUBLIC NOTICE 

Section 12‐52(h) of the LUC establishes requirements for public notice when public hearings are 

required with land use review.  A Major Site Plan requires both published and posted notice at least 15 

days prior to the public hearing.  The notice appeared in the Pikes Peak Courier on February 21, 2024 

and a sign was posted on the subject property beginning at least 15 days before the hearing date. 

 

FINDINGS 

The  application was  submitted  in  substantial  compliance with  the  Land  Use  Code.    Approval  criteria 

findings are outlined in the following table. 

 

Sec. 12‐52(i)(2) – General Approval Criteria 
Staff 

Finding 
Rationale 

a) Complies with applicable requirements 
including this land use code, town, state, 
and federal law; 

Yes  The application, upon conformance with the 
recommended conditions of approval, will 
comply with applicable codes and regulations. 

b) Consistent with any applicable adopted 
Town plans; 

Yes  The application complies with applicable Town 
plans, including the Comprehensive Plan as 
outlined in staff’s analysis. 

c) Promotes the public health, safety, and 
general welfare; 

Yes  The proposed facility promotes the health of 
horses, but also provides for the general 
welfare of the community for anyone who 
visits the facility to connect with animals, art, 
and the natural environment. 

d) Minimizes or mitigates adverse impacts 
associated with the application; 

Yes  Staff finds no substantial adverse impacts 
associated with the proposed facility.  Any 
future nuisances would be addressed through 
the application of Chapter 6 Health, Sanitation 
and Animals in the Green Mountain Falls 
Municipal Code. 

e) Will not result in significant adverse 
impacts upon the natural environment 
including air, water, noise, stormwater 
management, wildlife, and vegetation, 
or such impacts will be substantially 
mitigated; and 

Yes  Staff finds no substantial adverse impacts in 
regards to the natural environment associated 
with the proposed facility.  Any future 
nuisances would be addressed through the 
application of Chapter 6 Health, Sanitation and 
Animals in the Green Mountain Falls Municipal 
Code. 

f) Will not result in significant adverse 
impacts upon other property in the 
vicinity of the subject property. 

Yes  Staff finds no substantial adverse impacts to 
adjacent properties associated with the 
proposed facility.  Any future nuisances would 
be addressed through the application of 
Chapter 6 Health, Sanitation and Animals in 
the Green Mountain Falls Municipal Code. 



Town of Green Mountain Falls 
PO Box 524, Green Mountain Falls, CO  80819    719‐684‐9414 
greenmountainfalls.colorado.gov 

 

GMF‐24‐01 10325 W. Highway 24 Major Site Plan    Page 5 of 5
   

SUMMARY AND CONDTIONS OF APPROVAL 

The applicant, Jesse Stroope, has submitted a substantially complete application for the review of a 

Major Site Plan for the development of a horse wellness facility at 10325 W. Highway 24.  The 

application is in general compliance with the LUC with the following conditions: 

 

1. The proposed Animal Shelter use must be established in the Green Mountain Falls Land Use 

Code as a conditional use in the Open Space district. 

2. The applicant must obtain approval of a Conditional Use Permit for an Animal Shelter on the 

subject property. 

3. The applicant shall submit the application to utility companies serving the property for review 

and comment. 

4. The applicant shall submit the application to CDOT for review and comment. 

5. The applicant shall provide adequate ADA parking. 

6. The applicant shall provide a traffic study for review and comment by the Town. 

7. The applicant shall address all referral comments to the satisfaction of each referral agency 

including, but not limited to, CDOT, utility companies, engineering, planning, and Town staff. 

 

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS 

1. Motion to approve, with or without conditions, supported by findings 

2. Motion to deny supported by findings 

3. Motion to continue to a future meeting date with a reason and/or request for more information 

 

Attachments:

1. Combined Major Site Plan Application 

a. Application 

b. Cover Letter 

c. Architectural Site Plan 

d. Development Plan 

e. Grading Plan 

f. Utility Plan 

g. Renderings 

h. Architectural Drawings 

2. Annexation Plat 

3. Annexation Agreement 









GRAVEL 
PARKING LOT

PHASE 2 ARENA
200' X 100'

60' DIAMETER
ROUND PIN

EXISTING 24' WIDE
GRAVEL DRIVE

1
4

0
'-
0

"

D
R
Y LO

T 1

EXISTING PIN

EXISTING BARNS

NEW BARN

20'X30'
ATRIUM

12' WIDE GRAVEL
DRIVE

D
R
Y LO

T 2

24'x24' 
HAY BARN

W

W

W

W

ENTRY GATE

GATE

GATE

SPLIT RAIL
FENCE

5' EQUINE
FENCE

PHASE 2 BARN

SEPTIC 

FIELD

SEPTIC
PUMP
CHAMBER SEPTIC TANK

EXISTING
CISTERN

1
4

0
'-
0

"

GRAVEL 
PARKING LOT

PHASE 2 ARENA
200' X 100'

60' DIAMETER
ROUND PIN

EXISTING 24' WIDE
GRAVEL DRIVE

D
R
Y LO

T 1

EXISTING PIN

EXISTING BARNS

NEW BARN

20'X30'
ATRIUM

12' WIDE GRAVEL
DRIVE

D
R
Y LO

T 2

24'x24' 
HAY BARN

W

W

W

W

ENTRY GATE

GATE

GATE

SPLIT RAIL
FENCE

5' EQUINE
FENCE

PHASE 2 BARN

SEPTIC 

FIELD

SEPTIC
PUMP
CHAMBER SEPTIC TANK

EXISTING
CISTERN

DATE

SHEET NO.

No.

Revisions

Date

PROJ. NO.

ARCHITECTURE

+

PLANNING

+

INTERIORS

914 N. BROADWAY
SUITE 200
OKLAHOMA CITY, OK 73102
phone: 405.526.1300
fax: 405.526.1305
www.HSEarchitects.com

C
O

P
Y

R
IG

H
T

 ©
 2

0
2
3
 H

S
E

a
rc

h
it
e
c
ts

 

Title

Z
:\
H

S
E

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
\2

0
2
3
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
\2

3
2

5
 -

 H
o
rs

e
 W

e
lln

e
s
s
 M

e
a
d
o
w

 B
a

rn
 1

\R
e

v
it
\2

3
2

5
 H

o
rs

e
 W

e
lln

e
s
s
 M

e
a
d
o

w
 B

a
rn

 2
3
1

0
1
9
.r

v
t

1
/3

0
/2

0
2
4

 1
2

:2
1

:3
2

 P
M

A10.0

2325

H
O

R
S

E
 W

E
L
L
N

E
S

S
M

E
A

D
O

W
S

 B
A

R
N

 O
N

E

H
O

R
S

E
 W

E
L

L
N

E
S

S
 M

E
A

D
O

W
S

 B
A

R
N

 O
N

E

H
IS

T
O

R
IC

 G
R

E
E

N
 M

O
U

N
T

A
IN

 F
A

L
L

S
 F

O
U

N
D

A
T

IO
N

A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

U
R

A
L

 S
IT

E
 P

L
A

N

1
0
3
2
5
 W

. 
U

S
 H

ig
h
w

a
y
 2

4
 G

re
e
n
 M

o
u
n
ta

in
 F

a
lls

, 
C

O
 8

0
8

1
9

12-15-2023

P
E

R
M

IT
 D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

SCALE: 1" = 60'-0"1 ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN PHASE-1
SCALE: 1" = 60'-0"2 ARCH SITE PLAN OVERLAY PHASE-1















Digitally signed by Jamie Garcia
DN: C=US, 

E=jgarcia@eclipse-engineering.com,
O="Eclipse Engineering, P.C.", 

CN=Jamie Garcia
Date: 2023.09.29 08:20:11-07'00'
























































	GMF-24-01 Horse Facility Major Site Plan PC Packet.pdf
	Updated Application
	0.GMF Horse Wellness Meadow - LOE
	1.Horse Wellness Meadow Barn Arch Site Plan (1-30-2024)
	Sheets
	A10.0 - ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN


	2.PDF 2-2-24 Development Plan - Model
	3.PDF 2-2-24 Grading Plan - Cover
	4.PDF 2-2-24 Grading Plan-Model
	4a.PDF 12-5-23 Utility Plan-Model
	6.Renderings
	7.Stroope -High Sierra 48 - Drawings-STAMPED 11x17
	5.PDF 2-18-21 Revised Annexation Plat  Red Devil Mtn Parcel
	Final Annexation Agreement for Pittman Property


